LOGGING AND
INDUSTRIAL RAILWAYS

There were three logging and
mining shortlines that connected
with the North Shore line;

1. The Thurso and Nation Valley

2. Canadian Refractories Railway

3. The Salmon River and
Northern Railway
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PASSING BLACK LAKE on the run from
Marelan to Kilmar, the railway of
the Canadian Refractories Company
describes an interssting and
picturesque series of curves. This
1ine has now been abandoned.
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LOCOMOTIVE NUMBER 1 of the Canadian
Refractories railway is a G.E,
diesel-olectric., In this view, taken
at the Marelan plant, we see Messrs.
V. Thorburn, G, Poulter (driver)

and W. Stewart {trainman).
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Canadian
‘Refractories
Industrial

Railway

By Robert F. Legget

Another of Canada's small industrial railwoys hos
finished its course after 65 years of faithful service., It will
soon be just o memory to the few who knew it well. For the last
run was made on 17 July 1981 on the Canadian Refractories line from
Kilmar to Marelan, Quebec. All rolling stock was then brought down
to the Company's main plant, at Marelan, and has now been disposed
of: the twelve miles of track have now been dismantled.

The accompanying sketch map shows the location of this
little-known line in Quebec, across the Ottawa River from Hawkes-
bury, Ontario, roughly midway between Montreal and QOttawa. The
southern limit of the Precambrian Shield here comes close to the
Ottawa. Original settlements were noturally aleng the banks of the
"Grand River" (as the Ottawa was known in earlier days) but small
groups began establishing new homes along the early logging roads
going up into the hills., One of these small outposts eventually
became the Scottish settlement of Kilmax, eleven miles north of the
river towns of Calumet and Grenville. It is said that an itinerant
preacher first noticed the glistening white ore near Kilmar around
the year 1900. This was start of the notable industriocl complex
of today.

The white ore is low-grade deposit of magnesite, formed
in the Precambrian Grenville complex. It is believed that solutions
high in magnesium penetxoted the Grenville limestone in some geolo-
gical upheaval eons ago, forming the valuable magnesium carbonate,
Originally mined in open pits, the magnesite has been mined from
shafts since 1936, the underground operations of today being
efficient and highly mechonised, with proved reserves aveilable for
many years to come,

Mining commenced in 1914 when supplies from an Austrian
mine were cut off by the first world war. Dominion Timber and
Minerals Company was the operating agency. Ore was brought in horse-
drawn carts down the winding road from the mine to a siding on the
North Shore line of the Canadian Pacific Railway, as many as one
hundred teams of horses being employed at one time. In 1916 o
charter incorporating the Grenville, Harrington and Northern Railway
was issved for the construction and cperation of o standard gauge
railway from Grenville to Labelle, Quebec but this company was
apparently never set up.
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Later that year, however, a narrow gauge railway was
constructed from mile 54.7 of the C.P.R. Montreal to Ottawa line,
as far as the magnesite mine, approximately 11.5 miles to the north.
Urgently needed for wor purposes, magnesite was shipped down the
little line in ever increasing quantities (35,000 tons annually by
1918) and transferred to main line cars at the junction with tKe
C.P.R. All the eguipment for the little line had been purchased
from a logging compony in the Fort William district, "lock, stock
and borrel".

The names Kilmar and Marelan were derived from the
Kilbourne family which haod early financlal interest in the develop-
ment, It was taken over in 1918 by the Scottish Canadion Magnesite
Company; this company was succeeded by Canodian Refractories
Limited in 1933. This Company maintained close links with the
Harbison-Walker Refractories Company of Pittsburgh which finally
purchased a controlling interest in the operation after the end of
the second world war., In 1967, Dresser Industries obtained control
and the operation is now known as the Canadian Refractories Division
of Dresser Canada Inc.

In the 1920s the unique properties of the Kilmor ore,
even though low-grude, were studied by scientists of National
Reseurch Council of Canoda, notably by Mr, F. E. Lathe (whom I had
the pleasure of knowing us o colleague in my first years with the
Research Council). Methods were developed of beneficioting the
ore, notably by heavy-mineral separation; it could then be "dead-
burned” in e rotary kiln and crushed. It is in this form that the
ore is shipped from the processing plant ot the mine to the modern
manufacturing plant at Marelan, adjacent to Highway 148 and so
familiar to all who use this pleasant "north shore road" from
Montreal to Hull. The main products of the plant are MAGNECON
refractory bricks in o variety of sizes and shapes, used for such
purposes as lining kilns and furnaces. They are shipped from the
plant, initially by C.P.R., to countries all over the world, consti-
tuting one of Canada's notable specialist exports.

The first plant ot Marelan was started in 1953; it
has been expended ot regular intervals since then. The latest
addition is o replacement of the smaller special products plant
located at the Kilmaer mine. It was this change in manufacturing
that sealed the fate of the little railwoy since all that it would
now have to corry would be the crusehed ore from the mine to the
plant and this could clearly be done more economically by contractors
using trucks., The outomobile had won another victery.

Plans for upgrading to standord gouge the original
narrow-gauge line were made in 1930 and cerried out in 1931, using
the same alignment. After leaving the mine the route follows o
winding course through the bush, generally following the contours
of the land with only o few short sharp grades. There are no earth-
works to speuk of and only a few shorft steel joist bridges, cressing
and recrossing the Calumet and Kingham Rivers. The winding course
changes abruptly to a two-mile tangent as soon as the boundary line
of Chatham Township is reached, aon interesting feoture of location
for which an explanation haos not yet been traced. This long straignt
stretch is on o down grade of obout 1.8 per cent, finishing with a ¥



MORNING TRAIN READY TO LEAVE XILMAR for Marelan., An empty B. & O, box
car is ahead of two loaded hopper cars.
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junction and then a junction with the C.P.R. North Shore line at

the former Marelan station, followed by a short run into the sorting
yard of the Marelan plant, There are only one of two house along
the track (near the southern end); a small quarry is passed but
otherwise all that can be seen is the untouched bush.

The narrow-gauge railway was equiped with small side-
dump cars, two of which when loaded were hauled by one of the stud
of our small saddle-tank “"dinkies". No details of these small steam
locomotives are now available and no picture has yet been traced but
they must have provided g plecsing sight hauling their little trains
down from the hills. At one time, the line was so busy that oll
four locomotives were in steam at once, working day and night and
requiring o total of thirty two trainmen' Then the line was
converted to stondard gauge, they wem reploced by Plymouth 4-wheel
35-ton chain-~driven gasoline locomotives - one of the first
conversions from steam hauloge in Canade! There were eventually
three of these versotile machines, only one of which was retained
when, in 1950, a General Electric 65-ton, 580 h.p., diesel-electric
locomotive was obtained. It provided the main motive power for
the line for over thirty years until the line was closed; it
wos then in excellent condition. It has been sold to an industrial
complex at L'Orignal. The "Plymouth" was used only in emergencies
such as times when sections of the line were flooded as snow and ice
melted in springtime., The crushed ore was carried in standard
bottom-dump covered hopper cars; half a dozen tank cars were also
on roster for transport of oil up to the mine.

It was on locomotive No. 1 - the diesel-electric -
that I was privileged to make the journey from Kilmar to Marelan on
o lovely summer day. shortly before the line wos closed. Mr. Jo D
Hollett, Monager of the Marelan plant, kindly granted permission

SNOWPLOW OF THE KILMAR - MARELAN RAILWAY. Simple but effective,



THE ONE REMAINING PLYMOUTH GASOLINE LOCOMOTIVE in its storage shed
at the Kilmar mine.

THE END OF THE "TWO MILE STRAIGHT" showing the switch into the Y
adjacent to the main line connection,
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for this privilege; Mr. B, Boivin, Manager of the Kilmar plant,

made the necessary arrangements. I om indebted to Mr. Hollett for
mony courtesies, including some of the information which this account
contains. I was accompanied by Mr., V. Thorburn whose 35 years with
the Company enabled him to answer gll my persistent questions,

adding so greatly to the pleasure of the journey. It was o pleasure
to watch the expert handling of the locomotive by its drive, Mr. G.
Poulter who was assisted by Mr. W. Stewart as trainman and second-
man, busy indeed when our little train reached the plant.

The load was typical of the daily zun - an empty B & O
boxcar being returned to the main line and two loaded hopper cars,
each with about 350 tons of crushed calcined ore. Very shortly
after leaving the mine yard all traces of "civilisation" had
disappeared, a part only from the track ahead. It was a real
pleasure to be again amid untouched bush country, with birds
innumerable around. Wilson Lake is passed on the left (to the east)
at mile 2, the track runing along the edge of Black Lake two miles
further on. The traock was well ballasted throughout, with waste
rock from the mine, Despite the fact thet it had not been economical
to provide new ties for some years, riding was generally quite
smooth for such a heovy locomotive. Two thirds of the line hos
80 pound rails and one third 100 pound rails., It was clear that

the small maintenance-of-way gang had been doing o good job.

TYPICAL VIEW FROM THE FRONT PLATFORM OF THE LOCOMOTIVE showing the thick
bush through which the iine ran.
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Their main problem was easily seen -~ water! Since
the line wanders along the low-level areas between typical glaciated
exposures of the Shield, it traverses water-logged ground for much
of its length. Not only is this typical muskeg topography widespread
but the water problems are componded by the activities of beavers.
I saw more beaver dams and houses during the hour's ride than I had
seen for many years! We noticed the results of work by the track
gang in removing some beaver-made structures which were too close
to the line to be left intact. Rebuilding by the beavers of some
of these was also noted,

The water-logged nature of much of the track had led
to occasional derailments but only one serious mishap has interfered
with operations during recent years. This was a winter derailment
when improper clearance of snow at one of the few crossings caused
the flange on the locomotives lead wheel to "climb", ten feet of
railhead being broken off. The locomotive was derailed and tipped
on its side, fortunately sustaining no real damage even though the
ground was frozen., It proved possible to bring up the rough gravel
road (for which the crossing was provided) two powerful mobile
cranes. Once positioned, the two cranes had no difficulty in
replacing the locomotive on the track; it was soon operating again
ds usual. There have been, naturally, typical troubles with snow
drifts but the line had its own somewhat unusuel snow-plow; when
operated by the Plymouth, this cleared the track without difficulty.

The last part of our run, down the "two-mile-straight",
showed Driver Poulton's skill in handling his brakes since no power
was needed until the Y was reached and the Morelan plant was in
sight. The locomotive ran round its three cars by using the Y and
then pushed them into the plant yard, past oll that remains (a
battered hut) of the original Marelan station. Shunting took place
immediately, a job that will have to be done in future by o C P R
yard locomotive., Later in the day the return trip to Kilmar would
be made, with empty cars an occasional tank car full of oil, and
regular shipments of miscellaneous supplies for the special products
plant and the mine.

The elimination of this return freight, when the new
special products plant opened at Morelen, was largely responsible
for the closing of the line - obviously unavoidable but still
regrettoble to a roilway lover), It is to be hoped that future
transport of the ore by road will prove to be as safe and religble
as it haos been for 65 years by the railway. But a parting warning
from my new friends was to drive up the road from Calumet to Kilmar
with unusual care when next I paid a visit since it would then be
used by trwucks bringing down the ore!

Robert F. Legget



THE MORNING TRAIN BEING PUSHED BY LOCOMOTIVE No. 1 past all that

remains of Marelan station, The C.P. North Shore line from Montreal
to Hull-Ottawa is in the background,

MORNING TRAIN BEING PUSHED (by loco No. 1} into the railway yards
of the Marelen plant.
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After about ten years of operation, the Savanne territory be-
came denuded of usable timber in the vicinity of the railway, and
the decision was made to extend the railway northward through Hart-
well and Preston townships to the village of Duhamel, at the north
end of Lac 3imon. This extension was apparently completed just
prior to the outbreak of war in 1939, and it included the summit of
the railway, where the tracks go above the 900-foot elevation for
a short distance, about thirty miles from Thurso, The former main-
line northwesterly into Papineau township fell gradually into dis-
use and was abandoned, with a woods road being constructed along its
alignment. 4 vestigial relic of this route is the wye just south
of Singer, at Mile 26.

Extension northward from Duhamel took place in 1940 and 1941,
continuing intc Gagnon and Lesage Townships in the County of Lab-
elle. The railway went up the west shore of Lac Gagnon, then fol-
lowing the Riviere Brnest past Ernest Lake, terminated finally at
Canp 27, some 56.4 miles from Thurso. This location, still the
northern terminal of the T&NVR, is only fourteen miles from Nomin-
ingue and 25 miles from Mont-Laurier, both on the Ste. Agathe Sub-
division of the Canadian Pacific Railway. Some short spurs were
intermittently in use, one at Mile 24 for about half mile to Baie
de l'Qurs; another at Mile 46 for 1.2 miles down to Lac Gagnon, and
a third at the end of the line, Mile 56, for 4.1 miles to a lake.
Only the branch at Mile 46 remains, though there are a number of
short log-loading and gravel pit sidings. Wyes are located at Sin-

er (Mi%? 26), Mile 36 (one mile south of Duhamel), and at Camp 27
Mile 56).

Conversion of the Thurso & Nation Valley Railway to diesel
electric motive power came about beginning in 1947, when 2-6-2 No.2
was sold to the Montreal Coke & Manufacturing plant in Montreal, and
Shay No. 3 was scrapped at Thurso. No. 1, which appears to have
been a Climax, was scrapped after a few years' service in the late
1920s, 3Jince then, seven internal combustion locomotives have been
acquired, of which five are still in use, one having been lost in a
washout near Duhamel, while the second was sold to the Canada &
Gulf Terminal Reilway at Mont Joli, Que.

Excursion

For many years, the Thurso railway remained a "closed book" to
railway amateurs, due largely to conservative company policy, and
possibly stemmning originally from security measures surrounding the
reported employment of prisoners-of-war in the bush during the Sec-
ond World WVar, Recently, however, an exception was made for a
group of about fifty +to make a trip over the line from Thurso to
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The Thurso & Nation Valley Railway

— 0.S.A.Lavallee

ONE OF THE MOST INTERESTING applications of the railway to
private industry in Canada has been in the hauling of forest prod-
ucts from our country's vast natural store of timber, and it was
not too many years ago that many operations of this kind flourished
from coast to coast. The development of specialized highway equip-
ment by the automotive industry has made serious inroads upon tge
smaller volume operations, but a few logging railways can still be
ieen in operation, particularly in western Canada, on Vancouver

sland.

The operation with which we are concerned, however, is neither
on the Island nor even in the west, though it is one of the longest
such railways still in existence in Canada, It is in the Province
of Quebec, and its southern terminus is on the north shore of the
Ottawa River, barely thirty miles downstream from Ottawa's Parliag-
ment Hill. This aptly-titled system, the Thurso & Nation Valley
Railway Company, runs from the town of Thursce, on the Canadian
Pacific's Lachute Subdivision, up the valley of the Little Na-
tion River, through the wooded, rolling hills of Papineau and Lab-
elle counties, The carrier is owned by the Singer Manufacturing
Company, which is otherwise noted for sewing machines., It serves a
vast, unsettled hinterland of Crown terrifory stretching back for
more than fifty miles dinto the Laurentian interior, possesses five
diesel locomotives and a former Canadian Pacific official car, and
based on present forecasts, looks forward to a safe and secure
future,

History and Description

Chartered in Quebec {16 Geo. V, Cap.113) on March 24th, 1925,
the Thurso & Nation Valley Railway commenced construction immediat-
ely, and a little over a year later,in July 1926, carried the first
load of logs to the Thurso sawmill., In these early years, the Com-
pany possessed three steam locomotives, two being of the familiar
geared type, while the third was one of only a handful of tender
engines of the 2-6-2 arrangement ever used in the Dominion. An ex-
actly similar locomotive is still owned by McMillan & Bloedel on
its Nanaimo Lakes operation on Vancouver Island. The railway's
route lay northward for some 27 miles through the villages and ham-
lets of St. Sixte, Valencay, and Ripon to what was then known as
"Headquarters Camp" at Singer, Que. From Singer, the railway went
a further thirteen miles or so in a northwesterly direction through
Hartwell, Lathbury and Papineau townships following the valleys of
the Riviere Laroche and the Rliviere Savanne., The terminal camp was
about forty miles from Thurso. In the mid-Thirties, a spur was
constructed northward from Singer for four or five miles, and this
eventually became the main line after the 1line into the Savanne
valley was logged out,
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Camp 27 and return. This ¢rip was carried out under the auspices
of the Laurentide Chapter of the National Railway Historical Soc-
iety, to which CRHA members and friends were invited, and it took
place on Saturday, August 17th, 1963,

The participants boarded Canadian Pacific RDC-2 Ho. 9114 at
Montreal, and travelled as a special move to Thurso, via Ste. Ther-
ese and Lachute. The train left Montreal at 8:15 AM, EST and arr-
ived at Thurso two hours later. It is worthy of note that the con-
ductor was Mr. Walter Doran, a member both of NRHS and CRHA. Upon
arrival at Thurso, the passengers disembarked directly into the
gate of the Singer yard to find a picturesque special train await-
ing, consisting of 70-ton diesel-electric locomotive No, 7, two CFR
gondola cars and T&NV official car No. 27. The day being overcast
and inclined to rain, most of the participants boarded the official
car which is now in its 55th year, having been built by the Canad-
ian Pacific Railway at Farnham in April, 1909. One of that Comp-
any's well-known 35-foot official cars, No. 27 was sold to the
Thurso & Nation Valley Railway in 1929, just a few years after the
line's opening. It is the last CPR 35-foot car in existence.

In view of the preference for the sheltered accomodation, it
was decided to leave one of the gondolas at Thurso, and CPR 342326
was retained for the trip up the line. A short period of switching
served to rid ue of the surplus car, and to the basic three-car
train thus resulting, were added nine pulp-rack cars at the rear.

Less than a quarter of an hour after disembarking from the CPR
we were on our way, the diesel exhaust of No. 7 blowing back over
the gondola car as the train ascended the steep incline out of the
yard up to the plateaun above, which formed the Ottawa River shore
in prehistoric times. In the first wmile or so, the railway climbs
more than 100 feet. Once up the hill, the train picked up speed
and maintained a fairly-uniform 30 mile-per-hour pace, over well
ballasted track. Scon we found ourselves in the Laurentian foot-
hills, clattering over the points of the siding at Mile 5, then
skirting, in turn, the villages of St., 3ixte and Valencay. The sta-
tion at Mile 15, Rlipon, doubles as a3 shelter for track motor cars
and, until recently, boasted the line's only train order board.
This was probably more for ornament than use, since the trains are
dispatched by radio, all locomotives being so equipped.
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Thurso and Nation Valley Special Train
at Camp 27, Que., August 17th, 1963.
(Photo by Robert Halfyard)

About an hour after leaving Thurso, without noticeable inci-
dent other than a few harder-than-usual spurts of rain, our train
arrived at 3inger, lile 26, where the timberland begins and the
farmland ends. South of the station is a wye, which marks the or-
iginal railway up to the Savanne valley. Here, our locomotive and
the nine pulp racks were uncoupled, the locomotive replaced by Li-
ton unit No. 9, which works north of Hile 26 only. Ho time was
lost, and after a stop of barely five ninutes, we were on ourway
again, climbing into a narrow vallevy with scarcely enough room for
the railway and a small stream, Near Mile 30, the summit level of
the whole line is attained where, for a time, the rails lay sl-
ightly above the 900-foot elevation; we had climbed about 700 feet
since leaving Thurso. Once past this narrow defile, the train Jdesc~
ended a 3% grade, which is the ruling hill for southbound, loaded
trains, and obtained a brief glimpse of two former Canadian Pacific
wooden passenger cars and a caboose on the wye at Mile 36, before
stopping at Duhamel, 37 miles from Thurso, There is a two-track
enginehouse here, which was empty as we passed on our nerthward
journey,

The 30-m.p.h. pace continued as our locomotive pulled its
light, swaying two-car train along the picturesque reaches of the
shores of Lac Gagnon, passing occasional stacks of _logs ready
for loading, fed to the single track by roads inte the forest. The
overcast and intermittent rain persisted, making the day seem mere
like one in late avtwmn than in mid-August. Consequently, it was
with some sense of achievement that the buildings of Camp 27 came
into view around a curve and with the sight, the welcome news that
tea, coffee and cookies awaited us in the camp dining hall, Behind
us lay 56.4 miles of sinuous single-track line, laid with rail whose
welght ranged from 56 to 80 pounds, over which our trip had been
made in Jjust under three hours,

While we had our snack (with the compliments of the railway),
the locomotive and gondola car were wyed and recoupled to the off-
icial car, which is still known by its former CPR number 27. Here,
those of us who had braved the rain on the northbound trip in the
gondola car took the opportunity to examine the interior of the
official car, to find it fitted up plainly but comfortably, not too
far removed from its appearance while on the CPR, though missing
the original bedroom in favour of an enlarged lounge-dining room.
It was at this point, characteristically, that CRHA's Railway Comm-
ittee mentally earmarked No. 27 for the museum, when the T&NV Rail-
way is through with it, of course!
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Shouts of "all aboard" by Mr, Gaetan Lafleur, the superinten-
dent of the T&NVR, gathered the passengers together for the return
trip, and departure was made about 1:30 PM, The rain had now ceas-
ed, but the overcast remained; however, we were afforded brief
glimpses of deer and other wild life. At one point on the north-
ward journey, a series of short, sharp notes from the whistle of
No. 7 had dravmn our attention to sheep on the track. Deer need no
such blatant warning, and a short note from the locomotive was
sufficient to notify the passengers that something interesting was
to be seen. Our progress along the line was marked by the strident
tones of the whistle as it blew religiously for every one of innum-
erable dirt-road grade crossings. The whistle effectively punc-
tuated conversation in the open car.

Un the return trip, the train stopped briefly at the wye at
Hile 36, then backed down the west leg so that passengers might ex-
amine the two coaches and van noted on the northward Jjourney, and

now derelict at this point, At the spur at Mile 33, we backed in
and picked up aunother ex-CP van, this one showing signs of activity
with a curl of wood smoke rising from its smoke jack. Qur three

car train then proceeded to the north switch at Singer, where our
locomotive No, 9 cut off and went into a -siding to await No. 7
which had returned to Thurso with a ballast train after leaving us
several hours previocusly.

The passengers occupied themselves with a picture~taking res-
pite and after standing for about twenty minutes, were greeted by
No. 7 with a string of now-empty ballast cars which were placed in
a plt track, before the locomotive coupled to our three car train.
The non-stop trip back from Singer to Thurso was made in little
more than an hour, and after wyeing at the enginehouse in the mill
yard, backed alongside the waiting CPR RDC, No. 91li.

The CPR special train left almost immediately, and after mak-
ing very good time, arrived back in Montreal promptly at 6:30 PM,
giving us good cause Lo remember favourably, the first rail amateur
trip over eastern Canada's longest logging railway and, we earn-
estly hope, not the last!

Arrangeients for the excursion were made by Messrs., $.3. Yor-
then and W.F.G. Doran, who gratefully acknowledge the splendid co-
operation of the offiters of the Singer Hanufacturing Company and
the Thurso & FRation Valley Railway Company.

Thurso and Nation Valley
PHOT?O CAPTIONS: Railway equipment at Thurso
Que, on August 24th, 1935,

(Ses next page)
Pag 2-6-2 locomotive  #2,

Former CP conductor's van #3.
Russell snowplow  #10.

(Three photos from the collection
of the late Williem Cole.)
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This image, from a postcard, was provided by Doug Aikenhead of Ann Arbour, Michigan. It shows one of the three-
truck Shays, 53 or 54, working in the woods.

The small village of Fassett, Quebec, just east of Montebello, was a very busy place at one time. In 1906 the Haskell Lumber
Company decided to construct a mill there to cut the wood which was available in the Laurentian Hills, to the north of the
Ottawa River. One of the Directors of the Company was a Mr. J.W. Fassett who gave his name to the village. F.H. Hopkins,
the contractor, carried out much of the work using a small Davenport 0-4-0 saddle tank steam engine, The mill commenced
operation in 1907 and a standard gauge line was built from a dock on the Ottawa River, across the Canadian Pacific North
Shore line (Lachute Subdivision) and for some 27 miles north and west towards Mont Laurier. The line was constructed with
75 pounds per yard rail and closely followed the contours of the land, curving along the banks of the Salmon {now Riviere
Kinonge) and West Branch (now Riviere Kinonge Quest) streams in a very picturesque location.

Three, Shay-type, geared locomotives were purchased new to work the line. The first was No. 51, a two-truck Shay. The
other two, Nos. 53 and 54, were three-truck versions. The Davenport, which was used around the mill yard, took the number
52. Around this time, Haskell Lumber became Fassett Lumber but the locomotives retained the same numbers. Lumber was
cut at the mill for shipment by rail and water on the Ottawa River. Bark was also shipped out for U.S. tanneries. The line also
provided 50" hardwood cordwood for the Standard Chemical Company's distillation plant at Fassett and a separate
locomotive was allocated to this work. The small Davenport was not up to the job and it was scrapped in 1910. It was

replaced by a brand new 0-4-0 saddle tank [ocomotive from Montreal Locomotive Works. This was purchased by Standard
Chemicals, becoming Number 4.

The situation remained relatively stable through the First World War and into the post war boom of the 1920's. The
Company used 36-foot long log cars together with flat cars rented from the CPR. Snow was heavy and the company snow
plow was used frequently in winter. There were problems with ice build up on the many bridges on the line. At one time over
100 men were at work picking the ice. They even used a home made ice breaker.

The worse grade on the line was a quarter mile of 9% at High Bridge on the way up. There were many stretches at 4% and

hitp:/farww railways.incanada.net/Articles/Article 1988 1.html 1R
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some up to 7%. The only bad stretch on the loaded journey was a mile long section at 7% which was just two miles from the
Fassett mill. The trains either had to double this section or whistle for another locomotive to come out from the mill to assist.
The last section into the mill yard was on a steep descending grade. All hand brakes had to be tied down to assist the air
brakes to hold back the train.

" By the end of the 1920's the cut was reduced and the Fassett Lumber Company decided to move to Foss Mill, Ontario, in
Algonquin Park. Standard Chemicals took over the Salmon River and Northern Railway in order to maintain its supply of
hardwood. Shay No. 53 was sold to Standard Chemicals while the other two Shays, Nos. 51 and 54, moved to Foss Mill
where they worked on a logging line to Tea Lake. The saddle tank, No. 4, remained at Fassett to switch the yard. [t was soon
found that one main line locomotive was insufficient and another geared locomotive, this time a Climax no less, was sent
from the Standard Chemical Company's plant at South River, Ontario, to help out. This locomotive had come new to South
River and retained the number 200 which it carried there. Between 1929 and 1931 No. 53 was leased to the Thurso and
Nation Valley Railway which was under construction at that time.

The railway was becoming increasingly costly to maintain and the cutting rights expired in 1937 (they reverted to the
Seignery Club). The rails were torn up in 1938 and sold for scrap. No. 53 was cut up at Fassett the same year. The MLW
saddle tank No. 4 was used in the yard until 1940 when it was replaced by another small 0-4-0 saddle tank which came from
the company's Longford, Ontario, plant.

What happened to the two Shays that went to Foss Mill? Sometime during the late 1930's the operation was reorganised as
the Staniforth Lumber Company. The railway was abandoned when the operation was moved to Kiosk which had no railway.
No. 51 burned in the roundhouse at Foss Mill but No. 54 was purchased by Zagerman's (an Ottawa scrap dealer) and was for
sale at Barry's Bay in 1942. Although details on its final disposition are unclear, it was probably scrapped as part of the war
effort. Interestingly, when the T&NVR was looking to extend its line in the early 1940's, the company looked at the supplies
that were stored at Barry's Bay. They were not suitable as the T&NVR did not use stub switches!

Salmon River and Northern Railway Locomotive Roster
No.! Builder lSerial |Date Type Notes

51 Lima 1545 | 5/09 i| Shay 2 | Acquired new by Haskell Lumber; became Fassett Lumber #51;
moved to Foss Hill; burned.

52 ||Davenporti| 435 {4/06)] 0-4- i|Acquired new by F.H. Hopkins; scrapped 1910.
0ST

53 Lima 1956 ||5/06 || Shay 3 ||Acquired new by Haskell Lumber; became Fassett Lumber #53;
sold to Standard Chemicals #53, 1929; leased to T&NVR 1929-31;
scrapped 1938.

54 Lima [} 2353 ||8/10 || Shay 3 |Acquired new by Haskell Lumber; became Fassett Lumber #54;
moved to Foss Mill;
sold to Zagermans, for scrap? c1942.

4 MLW ||47808]1910} 0-4- JAcquired new by Standard Chemicals; scrapped 1940.

0ST
? ? ? ? 0-4- ||From Longford, Ontario, 1940; disposition unknown.
0ST ||(may have been an 0-6-0T)
200| Climax ? ? ||Climax |[Little is known of this locomotive. It was likely either Climax s/n 1127 of

1911 (45T} or Climax s/n 1523 of 1918 {60T). Both were acquired by
Standard Chemicals at South River in 1924.
s/n 1127 was scrapped in 1941 and s/n 1523 in 1943.

http:/Awww .railways.incanada.net/Articles/Article1988_1.htmi 215
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Acerial view of Fassett, Quebec, looking north from over the Ottawa River on October 30, 1927. CPR's Lachute Sub. runs from right to left. The
Fassett station, with two boxcars and twe loaded gondolas in the siding, can be seen clearly. The Fassett Mill is in the centre with two rail yards
running north/south. This photo was probably taken after the lumber operation had moved to Foss Mill, Ontario, as the western yard has been
lifted. The yard throat extends into the interchange track with the CPR. The CPR diamond and the line to the dock on the Ottawa have also
been lifted but can be clearly seen. There are several piles of logs close to the tracks in the yard. The main line runs north and then veers north
west as it climbs out of the Ottawa River valley, There is a wye to the west of the main line, This is set in the trees to the north of the mill and
cannot be seen from this angle.

"This aerial photograph, No. HA523-52, copyright 1927, Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, reproduced from the collection of the
National Air Photo Library with permission of Energy, Mincs and Resources Canada."
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THE SALMON RIVER AND NORTHERN POSTSCRIPT

In researching data on the Thurso and Nation Valley Railway I heard persistent stories that the
TNVR had used geared locomotives of all three types: Climax, Heisler and Shay. The only geared
locomotive owned by the T&NVR was a three-truck Heisler, serial 1577, of 4/29. The company
did lease the Shay No. 53 but this claim is not true. The Thurso Heisler spent most of its time in

the bush but just think - during the 1930's it was possible to travel down the north shore of the
Ottawa River towards Lachute and see geared locomotives from each of Climax, Heisler and

Shay!
Much of the information for this article came from papers in the Merrilees Collection which is
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Farn’hmm Newport {rade Redoction. )
Work is in progress on the reduction of the .
grade betiveen Farrham and Newport, Que., -
mileage §6.40. to m:!eage guogy from 1. a‘,‘f{ m-
plages to a.8% operating grade. Qn- the ex-
treme: Lma.w hills: it is proposed to use a
pusher service; whmh avoids the cutting of
these hills or eh ing the lime¢. There will
not, at the | ime, be any diversion of
the inain line: betweeh these two points. The-
work is being-done: by the company’s men
under the charge: of H. C. Grout, Resident
Engineer, F. 8. Darling, I}w:mc:m Engimeer, -
being in gauerai charge:

Seplder (704




June; 1919,

The Cgnadian Railway War Board's
cirenlar 97, issmed Feb. 3, slso supple-
ment 1 thereto, both of which were pub-
lished in Canadian Railway and Marine
World for March, have been ed
by circular 107, isszed by the board May
7. We are. advised that the change has
been made n deference to numeroms re-
quests from representztive sections of
the shipping poblic in varions parts of
the country. While the origmal inatrue-
tions were formulated after Jengihy. in-
vostigation and consideration, and obyi-
ously would have had the effeet of Te-
moving certain objectionable features of
railway transportation credit arrange-
ments, which have existed in the past,
by placing of raitwayd and shippers on
the same level, many shippera abjected
sirongly to giving bonds. as a matter
of prineiple, their contention being that
in many instance they are stronger finan-
cigily than the surety company from
which they would Teguire to get a bend.

Amended Regulations for Payment. of Tran

receipt of the whiached form of appliea-
tion from,  financislly .responsible. firms
for eredit, may  extend credit’ to such
firtpe’ under the srrangement deseribed

Heretnder:

“(a) Al bills or accounts rendered by
the eaxvier io.conaigor oF conaignes, 28
tHe eame miay ey from the 1st to the Tth
af_ oach month (both dates inclusive),
ahall be paid-on or before the ldth of
that monf s

(b). All Bills or accounts rendered by

the carrier to DOT O

as the case may be, . 81
14th, of each month {both dates incln-
sive}, shall be paid on or before the 2ist
of that month.

{¢) All bills or accounts remdered by
the carrier to consignor or consignee; as
the case may be, from the 15th to the
213t of esch month (both dates inclusive),
shafl be paid on or before the last day
of -that month.

(d) Al bills or acctunts rendered by

rier's. sgent a sight draft. on ship
or consignee. Where sceeptance of |

T AT Fatsar &R

e+ Actwel Thuek Gomutructien
s Propecied Thak Gonnfrombest
meramemmsimnrne Pioborn Trnek Canefryctoe
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-
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Laanids Tarmimals, Cansdian Natimat Raflwars, Eat. Endi '

The new:rules were worked out afier
several confertnces betwesn representa-
tives: of the hoard and the shippers; and
it in believed they will prove satisfactory
$o-all concermed: The mew regulitions
‘are as follows:’
Effective June 1,

Hima then rlitenee which ‘ray be in
_ the- following “regulations
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in advance;of service. Bagpage

are ‘subject-to~
exicapts wod :

the sam
‘hagguge:

chixrges, which

tive is of that: dite, ‘eredit atcommboda--
i o

the carrier to consignor or consignee, a8
the case mey be; from the kto—the
last day “of esch month (botk dates in-
clusive), shall Be. paidion or bedore. the
Tth of the month following. S

the presevibed period: st the.
office of Hhie carrier, Unles
srranged; between the interssted. partie
the deaignated office shall be tBatiof th
carriev’s agent from whom. nokice’:of
charges doe. {3 received. .

3; Credit arringemests o

#s cafh a5 devein provided is arrvan
ghipper or consignee, as the cage may
be:shall sbaoxb the mmount of “gxchanie
on such draft. ik :

e thimy of



